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Whitney-----

RESOURCE MANAGEMENT. PLANNING. SURVEYING CONSULTANTS

21 February 2012

Mr P Freeland
Dunedin City Council
PO Box 5045
DUNEDIN 9058

Dear Paul

RE: PRIVATE PLAN CHANGE
BALM ORAL DEVELOPMENTS (OUTRAM) LTD

Dec
22 FEB 2012

In response to your letter of 19 January 2012 we attach a brief report from CPG addressing
the likely traffic movements generated by the Structure Plan forming part of this application.

We hope this satisfies your request but please contact the writer if you require any further
information on the Private Plan Change.

Yours faithfully
JOHNSTON WHITNEY

DJOHNSTON
Consultant

cc. Chris Thomsen, Galloway Cook Allan, PO Box 143, Dunedin 9054
N Ferguson, Sierra Motels, PO Box 204, Omarama

Source Office - 4 Glasgow Street, Box 3 Mosgid,Tclephone (03) 489 7109, Fax (03) 489 7411, Email: johnswnwhitncy@xtra.co.nz
Principal: \.f(Davidlffbitney RTP Dip A1"JS(Econ.) MNZPJ • Consultant: David.l0hnston 1'7\'Z/SMNZPI
Survey Manager: Peter F. Williams B Surv. MNZIS • Administration Manager: Anita D jackson ANZIM

mailto:johnswnwhitncy@xtra.co.nz
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16 February 2012

Johnston Whitney Resource Management Consultants
PO Box 3
Mosgiel
DUNEDIN

Attention: Mr Dave Johnston

Dear Dave

Proposed Subdivision - Balmoral Developments (Outram) Ltd

Thank you for engaging CPG to provide advice on the access of the subdivision onto State
Highway 87.

We see the matters of interest to the New Zealand Transport Agency and Dunedin City Council as
being:

• The impact of traffic from the subdivision on the state highway and adjacent streets.
• The nature and safety of the intersection which will link the subdivision to the state highway.

The state highway, adjacent to the subdivision has a legal speed limit of 100km/h, reducing to
50km/h for westbound traffic adjacent to Lot 7.

Traffic
The subdivision, including Lot 1 DP 17247, contains 25 residential dwellings, 19 of which have
access to the state highway, and the remaining six which have access to Holyhead Street. The
NZTA Planning Policy Manual, Version 1, Table App5B/5, suggests that that each dwelling will
generate 10.4 vehicles per day, and at during peak hour traffic, 1.2 vehicles per hour. It is
estimated that 198 vehicles per day will enter or exit the state highway by means of the
intersection and that 23 vehicles will do so during the peak hour. For Holyhead Street, the numbers
are 62 vehicles per day and 7 vehicles per hour, respectively.

Traffic counts on SH87 at Wylies Crossing are considered to give an appropriate indication of
traffic volumes adjacent to the subdivision. Between 2006 and 2010, these varied between 2650
and 2850 vehicles per day. For the purpose of this exercise, a value of 3,000 vehicles per day
would be appropriate to use.

If it is assumed that the peak hour volume equals 10% of the daily traffic volume, following peak
hour statistics result:

• 300 vehicles per hour
• 5 vehicles per minute
• 1 vehicle per 12 seconds.
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As shown above, peak hour traffic from the subdivision is 23 vehicles per hour, or one vehicle per
156 seconds. This equates to one vehicle entering the state highway traffic stream every thirteenth
gap. It is considered that the current configuration of the state highway has adequate capacity to
accept traffic from the subdivision.

Holyhead Street, upstream of its intersection with Bidston Street, appears to have 15 or sixteen
existing dwellings, consequently the additional six dwellings will constitute a potential increase in
traffic of some 40%. It is considered that Holyhead Street also has adequate capacity to accept
traffic from the subdivision, as do the other streets and intersections of Outram which will also
accept this traffi~.

It should be understood, that the split between traffic directions during the peak hour is unknown,
although it is expected that most traffic will be travelling from Outram to Mosgiel during the peak
hour. Gaps between vehicles will also not be consistent but will vary around the times presented
here.

Intersection
It is understood that the proposed intersection will have both a left turn lane and a right turn bay for
traffic entering the subdivision from the state highway. It is recommended that the design of the
intersection be guided by the NZTA Manual of Traffic Signs and Markings, Part 2, Figures 3.25 to
3.27.

Traffic approaching the intersection has a 100km/h legal speed limit. The development of this
subdivision has the effect of moving the urban boundary of Outram eastwards, and it may be
appropriate for the 50km/h speed limit to be moved eastwards also, so that the safety of the
intersection is enhanced by increased sight distance and gap times.

Sight distance for a legal speed limit of 100km/h, in accordance with the NZTA Planning Policy
Manual, can be achieved in the easterly direction. However, this will require some of the trees
adjacent to the state highway carriageway east of the intersection being removed. In the westerly
direction, a hedge presently restricts visibility, however inspection of an aerial photograph suggests
that sight distance for 85km/h could be achieved if the hedge were removed and limits were put on
vegetation and fences at the fronts of Lots 7, 8, 9 and 10.

Conclusion
The additional traffic generated by the proposed subdivision will have an impact on the existing
traffic and roading infrastructure at Outram. The magnitude of the impact, however, can be
accommodated by the existing infrastructure with the addition of an iinproved intersection including
a left turn lane and a right turn bay.

Additionally, safety at the intersection could be enhanced by moving the location of the 50km/h
speed restriction signs to the east.

Should you need any further information, please do not hesitate to call Chris Baughen on 03 477
7133.

Yours faithfully
CPG
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